
Emergency procedure for meetings will be circulated to Councillors and visitors 
attending this meeting. Please familiari se yourself with these procedures and the 
location of fire exits. 

Switchboard: 01293 438000
Main fax: 01293 511803
Minicom: 01293 405202 DX: 
57139 Crawley 1
www.crawley.gov.uk

Town Hall
The Boulevard

Crawley
West Sussex

RH10 1UZ

Town Hall
The Boulevard

Crawley
West Sussex

RH10 1UZ

Crawley Borough Council

Licensing Committee

Agenda for the Licensing Committee which will be held in Committee 
Room A & B - Town Hall, on Monday 30 October 2017 at 7.30 pm

Nightline Telephone No. 07881 500 227

Head of Legal and Democratic Services

Membership:
Councillors R S Fiveash (Chair), M L Ayling (Vice-Chair), T G Belben, N J Boxall, 

B J Burgess, K L Jaggard, M G Jones, K McCarthy, C J Mullins, 
D M Peck, C Portal Castro, B J Quinn, R Sharma and J Tarrant

Please contact Democratic.Services@crawley.gov.uk if you have any queries regarding this 
agenda. 

Published 20 October 2017

Public Document Pack

Page 1



The order of business may change at the Chair’s discretion

Part A Business (Open to the Public)

Pages

1.  Apologies for Absence
 

2.  Disclosures of Interest 

In accordance with the Council's Code of Conduct, Councillors 
of the Council are reminded that it is a requirement to declare 
interests where appropriate.

3.  Minutes 3 - 4

To approve as a correct record the minutes of the Licensing 
Committee held on 11 September 2017.

4.  Proposed Charging Scheme for Food Safety 
Inspections Linked to National Food Hygiene Rating 
Scheme 

5 - 8

To consider report PES/258 of the Head of Economic and 
Environmental Services.

5.  Supplemental Agenda 

Any urgent item(s) complying with Section 100(B) of the Local 
Government Act 1972.

This information is available in different formats and languages.  If you or 
someone you know would like help with understanding this document please 
contact the Democratic Services Team on 01293 438549 or email: 
democratic.services@crawley.gov.uk

Page 2

mailto:democratic.services@crawley.gov.uk


Licensing Committee (5) 
11 September 2017 

Crawley  Borough  Council 

Minutes of Licensing Committee 
11 September 2017 at 7.30pm 

Present:  Councillor     R S Fiveash (Chair) 
Councillor    M L Ayling (Vice-Chair) 

Councillors   N J Boxall, B J Burgess, K L Jaggard, M G Jones, 
K McCarthy, C J Mullins, D M Peck, C Portal Castro, 
B J Quinn, R Sharma, J Stanley and J Tarrant. 

Officers Present: 

Tony Baldock Environmental Health Manager 
Roger Brownings Democratic Services Officer 
Kevin Carr Legal Services Manager 
Bill Nailen Licensing Officer 

Apology for Absence: 

Councillor T G Belben, 

7. Members’ Disclosure of Interests

The following disclosures of interests were made by Members:-

Member Minute 
Number 

Subject Type and Nature of 
Disclosure 

Councillor 
N J Boxall 

Minute 9 Hackney Carriage 
Fares 2017 - 2018. 

Personal Interest - his 
former employer is an 
accountancy firm 
used by a number of 
the hackney carriage 
and mini cab drivers 
and firms. 

. 

8. Minutes

The minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 12 June 2017 were approved as
a correct record and signed by the Chair.

Page 33 Agenda Item 3



Licensing Committee (6) 
11 September 2017 

 
9. Hackney Carriage Fares 2017 - 2018  
 

The Committee considered report PES/255 of the Head of Economic and 
Environmental Services which considered proposals for a requested increase to the 
Hackney Carriage table of fares for the year 2017-2018.  The increase had been 
requested by the Executive of the Crawley Hackney Carriage Association further to its 
consultation of its members. 
 
It was confirmed that the last variation to the Hackney Carriage fares table had 
taken effect on 3 February 2014.  The proposed changes were designed to ensure 
that the trade received a limited increase when undertaking short journeys (with an 
intended reduction to the initial “flag drop” and the absence of any increase in the 
current running mile) whilst also helping to offset rising inflation. The proposals 
were set out in detail in Appendix B to the report. 
 
With Members seeking and receiving clarification on a number of issues arising, 
and discussing such issues as fare comparisons with those of the Private Hire, the 
Committee indicated its support for the report’s proposals.  

 
RESOLVED 
 
(1) That it is confirmed that the Committee has considered the proposal to vary 

the table of fares put forward by the Executive of the Crawley Hackney 
Carriage Association as set out in Appendix B to report PES/255. 

 

(2) That the existing table of fares be varied (as proposed above), and that the 
Head of Economic and Environmental Services, or an officer acting on his 
behalf, be authorised to publish a public notice of the variation and the period 
within which objections can be made (the expiry date of the period to be set by 
the Head of Economic and Environmental Services but to be no later than 19th 
November 2017) in accordance with section 65 of the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976. 

 
(3)  That it is noted that should any objections be made following the publishing of  

     the notice which are not subsequently withdrawn, the Committee will be 
required to meet again and consider those objections.  If no objections are 
received, the variation to the existing table of fares will take effect on the day 
following the expiry of the objection period. 

 
 
10. Closure of Meeting 
 

The meeting ended at 8.00 pm. 
 
 

R S FIVEASH 
Chair

Page 43 Agenda Item 3



Crawley Borough Council

Report No: PES/258

Report to the Licensing 

Committee

30th October 2017
Proposed Charging Scheme for Food Safety Inspections

Linked to National Food Hygiene Rating Scheme

Report of the Head of Economic and Environmental Services, PES/258

1 Purpose:

1.1 To consider charging food businesses in Crawley for food safety 
rescore visits made under the national Food Hygiene Rating Scheme 
(FHRS).

2. Recommendations:

2.1 That the Committee agrees to the introduction of a flat rate charge for 
rescoring FHRS visits requested by food businesses.

3. Reasons for Recommendations:

3.1 Through adopting a charging scheme for rescoring FHRS visits the Council 
will be able to assist local food business to improve. This will be beneficial 
as it will reduce local public health risk due to poor food hygiene practices 
and it will also help local business improve their performance and advertise 
this fact to help them prosper.

3.2 Through adopting a charging scheme Environmental Health Officers 
will be able to assist in regards to 3.1 above but the Council will be 
able to recover its costs for providing the additional non statutory role.

3.3 The adoption of a charging scheme will enable the Council to make the 
following changes as permitted under the Brand Standard in respect to the 
FHRS.

 The ‘standstill’ period will no longer apply when a fee is charged and the 
requested re-inspection/re-visit must be carried out within three months of 
receipt of the request or, where payment is required in advance, the 
payment of the fee

Page 54 Agenda Item 4



 There will be no limit on the number of requested re-inspections/re-visit a 
business can make, and the fee may be charged for each re-inspection/re-
visit carried out; and

 The Local Authority’s considerations when deciding whether or not to agree 
to a request are unchanged

4. Background:

4.1 The Food Standards Agency (FSA) are the owners of the National Food 
Hygiene Rating Scheme (FHRS) which is administered locally by the 
Environmental Health Team. Under this scheme food business operators 
are given a rating between 0 (urgent improvement necessary) and 5 (very 
good) for the standards of food hygiene found at the time of their routine 
inspection. The score is based on three parts of the scoring method used 
to determine inspection ratings and risk in Annex 5 of the Food Law Code 
of Practice namely food hygiene structure, food hygiene safety and 
confidence in management.

4.2 Where businesses are awarded a score less than the maximum 5, they 
are entitled to request a rescore with a view to obtaining a higher score 
after undertaking necessary improvements.

4.3 The FSA have recently amended the guidance document which sets the 
operational rules for the scheme known as the ‘Brand Standard’ (version 6) 
to allow  Local Authorities to assist local business by accessing multiple 
revisits for the purposes of improving their score. The Brand Standard also 
enables food business to access revisits in a far more expedient manner 
where the Local Authority responsible operate a scheme of charging for 
the inspection in order to cover their costs. Local Authorities who choose to 
adopt a charging scheme are also able amend the so called stand still 
period allowed further to an inspection being undertaken and the results 
appearing on the FHRS website.

4.4 The Food Standards Agency (FSA), who consider charging is perfectly 
legal has also issued guidance that the adoption and implementation of 
the FHRS by local authorities falls within the general power under The 
Localism Act 2011.

4.5 The FSA considers that providing a re-inspection upon request by a 
food business operator, in circumstances where there is no statutory 
requirement to provide that re-inspection, also falls within the general 
power of the Localism Act 2011.

4.6 The FSA considers that each of these circumstances apply to re-
inspections because:

 a re-inspection can be properly described as a service which a local 
authority provides on a non-commercial basis to a food business 
operator with that food business operator’s agreement;

Page 64 Agenda Item 4



 the FHRS is a non-statutory scheme in England, meaning that the local 
authority is under no statutory duty to perform a re-inspection; and

 for the reasons set out in the Agency’s publication of September 2010, the 
local authority does not have any other power to charge a food business 
operator for a re-inspection.

4.7 Locally Brighton & Hove City Council was selected by the FSA to take 
part in a national pilot project to charge for such re-inspections. A charge 
of £90 was used in the pilot. However, in order to fully recover costs, 
BHCC suggest that £145 would be needed. The trial at BHCC proved 
successful and Horsham District Council have also decided to provide 
revisits for FHRS rescoring purposes for a fee.

4.8 Under the provisions of The Localism Act 2011 Crawley Borough Council 
would also be permitted to introduce a charging scheme.

4.9 The Environmental Health Service has not offered additional visits over 
and above those specified by the Brand Standard which enables a food 
business to have a further visit within a period of 3 months if they 
undertake the necessary improvements. Only a small number of 
requests have traditionally been received in the order of 4 -5 annually. It 
is nevertheless hoped that further to offering a service to improve food 
hygiene and FHRS scores this will increase accordingly. Due to the fact 
the Council may recover any costs associated with this service additional 
resources could be funded if needed although this is considered as 
highly unlikely to occur.

4.10 It is not proposed that re-visits and inspections undertaken in order to 
protect public health or evaluate if further enforcement action is applicable 
will be included within the scope of the charging scheme.

5. Staffing, Financial and Legal Implications/Powers:

5.1 Financial Implications: The proposed charge is subject to the council’s 
Corporate Fees and Charges Policy. The proposed charge is £145 which 
is less than the £160 introduced in Wales as part of a mandatory display 
scheme and has been calculated to ensure that costs are recovered 
based on research and experience more locally in Brighton and Hove. 
The fee will be reviewed in line with all other Environmental Health and 
Licensing charges on an annual basis and any variances will be agreed 
with the Portfolio Holder in the normal fee setting round accordingly.

5.2 The potential revenue income is anticipated to be minimal initially but 
small incremental growth may be anticipated.

5.3 Legal Implications: The Council has power to charge for the discretionary 
service covered by this report under the Localism Act 2011. There are no 
restrictions in terms of charging for this service but the charging policy 
must comply with the Council’s statutory duties (including the Human 
Rights Act and Public Sector Equalities Duty) and the manner of exercising 
the power must comply with general administrative law principles e.g. 
propriety of purpose.  As the charging is not will not be undertaken through 

Page 74 Agenda Item 4



a company, the amount of the charges must be set at a level which is 
limited to costs recovery which may include overheads and other central 
costs.

5.4 Equalities Implications: None

5.5 Staffing Implications: There are no staffing implications associated with 
these recommendations as there is sufficient capacity within the service to 
undertake this work.

6.0 Risk Implications

6.1 Delays or restrictions to food business operators requesting revisits may prevent 
them improving food hygiene scores until the next routine visit which may be up to 
24 months in some instances. This may have a negative impact in terms of overall 
food hygiene ratings in Crawley as regards the economy and prevent local 
businesses succeeding and growing.

7.0 Environmental Implications

7.1 None.

8.0 Sustainable Community Strategy and Corporate Plan

8.1 The report relates to the following areas in which the Council operates to enhance 
the town and the quality of life of local people:-

(i) Prosperity y
(ii) Community y
(iii) Environment y
(iv) Value for Money y

9.0 Background Papers

i. FHRS Brand Standard
ii. Food Law Code of Practice
iii. Localism Act 2011
iv. FHRS Charging for Revisits Pilot

Contact Officer: Tony Baldock
Environmental Health Manager
Email: tony.baldock@crawley.gov.uk
Tel: 01293 438220

Page 84 Agenda Item 4

https://www.food.gov.uk/enforcement/enfcomm/fhrssteeringgroup/hygieneratingsguidance
https://www.food.gov.uk/enforcement/codes-of-practice/food-law-code-of-practice
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2011/20/contents/enacted
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=1&ved=0ahUKEwjDjImv9-zVAhViK8AKHY1wC80QFggrMAA&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.food.gov.uk%2Fsites%2Fdefault%2Ffiles%2Fenf-e-17-020.pdf&usg=AFQjCNHHNJ7pi2vimcm6EjGcHBw1gDxquw
mailto:tony.baldock@crawley.gov.uk

	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Crawley  Borough  Council
	Minutes of Licensing Committee
	11 September 2017 at 7.30pm
	7. Members’ Disclosure of Interests
	8. Minutes




	4 Proposed Charging Scheme for Food Safety Inspections Linked to National Food Hygiene Rating Scheme

